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1 LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 2, 2016, 9:06 A.M.

2 THE COURT:  Good morning, everybody.  

3 Let's see, on page 1, this is Japonica Glover v.

4 John Cargile and North Las Vegas.  This is A-683211.  For the

5 record, can you state your name?

6 MR. CRAFT:  Good morning, Judge.  Chris Craft for

7 the City of North Las Vegas.

8 MR. GANZ:  Adam Ganz on behalf of the plaintiff -- 

9 THE COURT:  Okay.

10 MR. GANZ:  -- Ms. Glover-Armont.

11 THE COURT:  Mr. Craft, are you also representing

12 John Cargile?

13 MR. CRAFT:  Yes, sir.

14 THE COURT:  Okay.  This is Defendants' Motion for

15 Summary Judgment.  I've had an opportunity to review the

16 moving papers.  I think the issue that I'm looking at,

17 basically, both of you are in opposite positions, is with

18 respect to whether or not -- what evidence can be supported

19 that the red lights and sirens were on in the vehicle, so.

20 MR. CRAFT:  Well, there is a dispute, a factual

21 dispute on that point.

22 THE COURT:  Um-hum. 

23 MR. CRAFT:  Our officer says he had his lights and

24 sirens going -- 

25 THE COURT:  Right.

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC � 303-798-0890
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1 MR. CRAFT:  -- like he always does on every single

2 Code 3.

3 THE COURT:  Well, isn't there something on the

4 vehicles that -- that supports that?

5 MR. CRAFT:  I believe so.  I think that it's -- it's

6 almost -- 

7 THE COURT:  But wasn't that something that was

8 presented in discovery other than just the officer's

9 testimony?

10 MR. CRAFT:  I think it is an automatic thing, Judge. 

11 And I think that -- he does not respond to calls unless those

12 are going with the lights and sirens.

13 THE COURT:  Well, I know, but that's -- 

14 MR. CRAFT:  He has control over it.

15 THE COURT:  -- that's the policy.  But we know that

16 they have to activate them, themselves.

17 MR. CRAFT:  Well, he has control over it to an

18 extent.  And I think what he said he did here was as he

19 approached the intersection there is a separate button they

20 can hit to where they can make sort of a vibrating thing so

21 you can feel it -- 

22 THE COURT:  Um-hum. 

23 MR. CRAFT:  -- and hear it at the same time.  So

24 that's what he did.

25 THE COURT:  I know, but isn't there -- what I'm

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC � 303-798-0890
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1 asking, isn't there something that documents that like a --

2 like through the -- through dispatch or something like that

3 that documents it?

4 MR. CRAFT:  Sort of like a black box situation in

5 the vehicle?

6 THE COURT:  Yeah.  I thought there -- 

7 MR. CRAFT:  This vehicle did not have that.

8 THE COURT:  Oh.

9 MR. CRAFT:  That was not present here.

10 THE COURT:  Okay.

11 MR. CRAFT:  And so we do have different testimony.

12 THE COURT:  Well, then -- 

13 MR. CRAFT:  It differs in a very subtle way because

14 what she says initially is that she didn't hear it and then

15 she changed it to he didn't have his sirens on.  So it's  

16 like --  

17 THE COURT:  Okay.

18 MR. CRAFT:  -- a little bit of a dispute there.  But

19 it's not a material factual dispute, Judge.

20 THE COURT:  Well, it is.  It is, because -- because

21 if the jury believes that he didn't have his lights and siren

22 on, does he still have the discretionary authority to enter

23 the red light without it even though he is going to a call?

24 MR. CRAFT:  He does, Judge, because first of all he

25 is still in compliance with NRS 44B.700 which allows you to go

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC � 303-798-0890
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1 with either lights and sirens or just lights.  So he is not

2 violating any law by going through this.

3 THE COURT:  Yeah, but if -- okay, or just lights.

4 MR. CRAFT:  Or just lights.

5 THE COURT:  That's what I'm saying.  But isn't there

6 a dispute as to whether or not he even had his lights on?

7 MR. CRAFT:  No.  

8 THE COURT:  She's -- 

9 MR. CRAFT:  She said she -- 

10 THE COURT:  She's saying -- 

11 MR. CRAFT:  -- saw his lights.

12 THE COURT:  What's that?

13 MR. CRAFT:  She saw his lights when she saw the

14 vehicle so there's no violation of law going on here.

15 THE COURT:  Okay.

16 MR. CRAFT:  And if you want to go to the next level

17 about whether it's like a violation of what our police policy

18 and procedure is -- 

19 THE COURT:  Um-hum. 

20 MR. CRAFT:  -- that's not the sort of policy that

21 we're talking about when it comes to discretionary immunity.

22 THE COURT:  Right.

23 MR. CRAFT:  The policies we're talking about there

24 are, enforce the law, prevent crime, prevent the public, these

25 over-arching sort of large policies.  And even our boots in

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC � 303-798-0890
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1 the ground acts that are furtherance of those policies are

2 immune.

3 THE COURT:  Um-hum.  Yeah, but -- 

4 MR. CRAFT:  That's -- 

5 THE COURT:  -- doesn't the immunity go to -- they

6 have to do certain things before they can accept the immunity,

7 not just be responding to a call?

8 MR. CRAFT:  All he has to do is under Martinez v.

9 Maruszczak there's two elements.  One, he has to be making a

10 conscious decision, and that's where they're talking about

11 sleeping at the wheel.  He has to make so many split second

12 decisions when he's going -- 

13 THE COURT:  Right.

14 MR. CRAFT:  -- on this -- responding to a call; what

15 route to take, whether to go through a red light, how to

16 proceed through the red light.  These are all decisions he has

17 to make on the fly.  

18 Second, it has to be in furtherance of a public

19 policy.  And the policy here is -- the polices here are

20 obvious; fight crime, prevent crime -- 

21 THE COURT:  Yeah.

22 MR. CRAFT:  -- protect the public, that's all we

23 have to meet and he does that here.  And we have given you

24 several cases -- 

25 THE COURT:  Yeah, but -- 

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC � 303-798-0890
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1 MR. CRAFT:  -- from around the county.

2 THE COURT:  -- I'm okay with the second aspect of

3 that.  I don't think there's any -- I don't think there's any

4 dispute with that -- 

5 MR. CRAFT:  Okay.

6 THE COURT:  -- that he was going in furtherance of

7 his position fight crime and protect the public.  At this

8 point, I'm not.  I haven't heard from the plaintiffs yet.  But

9 the first one is the one that I had the issue with.  Isn't

10 there set policies in order to exercise that discretion?  You

11 know, he makes the decision, and he's made that split second

12 decision, whatever, to act.

13 MR. CRAFT:  Um-hum. 

14 THE COURT:  But then he has to do certain things in

15 order to place the public safe.

16 MR. CRAFT:  Well -- 

17 THE COURT:  And that's the lights and the sirens.

18 MR. CRAFT:  Right.  Well, he even has the discretion

19 as to decide what is due care.  And we've provided case law to

20 the Court that supports that.  

21 Every decision that he makes, all he has to do is

22 make a conscious decision.  That's what's supported in Nevada,

23 under Ransdell, code enforcement officers making a judgment

24 call as to what is a -- what is a public nuisance or what is,

25 you know, this guy having a junkyard on his property.

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC � 303-798-0890
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1 We offered you Seiffert where they're making a

2 judgment call as to how to tape off a crime scene.  

3 We offered you Gonzalez where police are immune from

4 liability for a judgment call on a rescue of an individual

5 even though it turned out to be the wrong guy.

6 THE COURT:  I know, but the judgment in this

7 particular case, depend on what is believed factually, is a

8 judgment -- you're going to -- for purposes of protecting the

9 public and safety of the public and responding to crime, and

10 then in response, he does something that puts the public in

11 peril when he's going through a red light without notifying

12 individuals that he's -- that he's doing that, going for a

13 call.  So that's why -- 

14 MR. CRAFT:  Well, he -- well, first of all, he did

15 notify them by having his lights on at the very -- 

16 THE COURT:  Okay.  That's -- that's -- 

17 MR. CRAFT:  -- least, undisputed, yeah, and he says

18 he has his sirens on.  I know that's a factual dispute.

19 THE COURT:  Okay.

20 MR. CRAFT:  But the decision is how to proceed.  And

21 we can't have -- and the whole point of all those cases that I

22 cited, six cases from around the country where they said,

23 like, look, we cannot have people second guessing our officers

24 in a job that is already hard enough.  They are putting their

25 life on the line every single day.  This is a life in the

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC � 303-798-0890
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1 situation.  They're responding to shots fired.  He's -- 

2 THE COURT:  Yeah.

3 MR. CRAFT:  -- we've made the call.  He's got to get

4 there as quickly and safely as he can using his best judgment.

5 And we can't have in the back of his mind saying, oh

6 my gosh, what if I get in a car wreck, I might be held

7 personally civilly liable.  We can't have him delaying,

8 touching the brakes.  That's that situation.

9 And it's also very weird factually here.  This

10 particular intersection, we're going north on 5th, we're

11 turning left on Cheyenne.  There is this massive pile of dirt

12 that's a golf course right there.

13 THE COURT:  Um-hum. 

14 MR. CRAFT:  And so you cannot possibly tell if there

15 are cars coming the other way until you pull into the lane by

16 a couple of feet which is what he did.

17 THE COURT:  Okay.

18 MR. CRAFT:  Look, he had to use so much judgment on

19 the split second decisions over and over in order to best

20 respond to this call, in order to save a life, protect a life,

21 stop a crime.

22 THE COURT:  Okay.

23 MR. CRAFT:  And yeah, we had a fender bender result.

24 THE COURT:  Okay.  All right.  Thank you.

25 MR. CRAFT:  Thank you, Judge.

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC � 303-798-0890
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1 MR. GANZ:  Judge, there are some factual things that

2 need to be discussed.  

3 And more specifically with regards to your concerns

4 with the statute itself.  The statute itself in subsection (4)

5 of 44B.700(4) specifically says, "The provisions of this

6 section do not relieve the driver from the duty to drive with

7 due regard for the safety of all persons and do not protect

8 the driver from the consequences of the driver's reckless

9 disregard of the safety of others."

10 So you're exactly right.  Just because he flicks a

11 switch on and says that there's lights going on, or even if he

12 had the sirens on, I'm not saying that he did, because I don't

13 believe that that's actually accurate.  

14 But let's just say that.  Does that mean that he can

15 just go straight down Las Vegas Boulevard, right down the

16 center of the road?  Does that mean he's entitled to do that? 

17 At some point in time, it's not discretionary.

18 Discretionary, when he decided to go after somebody,

19 that's discretionary, okay?  If he was chasing my client and

20 made a determination to go ahead and hit her at the front of

21 his car or something like that, that's discretionary.

22 To go and chase after this individual, whoever he

23 was chasing after -- he wasn't chasing anybody by the way.  He

24 was going to a specific location.  So it wasn't like he was

25 actually, you know, on somebody's tail and had to actually

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC � 303-798-0890
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1 speed up in order to get them.  

2 He knew the location that the shots were fired at he

3 was going to a specific location.  At some point in time,

4 discretion does not allow him immunity from making decisions

5 that are in disregard for the specific policies in which

6 they're trying to protect.

7 In this particular instance, by the way, they own

8 that -- that dirt lot they're talking about.  He knew that he

9 could not see when he went to that particular direction of

10 travel.  There was a dozen other places that he could have

11 gone in order to go around that to where he could actually go.

12 He chose to go that particular route that particular

13 day.  That's not discretionary, okay?  When he -- 

14 THE COURT:  Well, would you -- I disagree with you

15 there.

16 MR. GANZ:  Okay.

17 THE COURT:  If the officer is picking the most

18 direct route that would be discretionary, would it not?

19 MR. GANZ:  I'm not sure that that's what his mindset

20 was at that particular time. 

21 THE COURT:  Okay.  So that -- isn't that something

22 that was borne out in the discovery?

23 MR. GANZ:  Well, no, he said that -- he said that

24 was the route they usually took because there was less

25 traffic.

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC � 303-798-0890
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1 THE COURT:  Okay.

2 MR. GANZ:  But that doesn't necessarily mean it's

3 the safest.  And you certainly have that as a policy within

4 North Las Vegas.  And by the way, this doesn't -- 

5 THE COURT:  Well, just by that answer, wouldn't that

6 be discretionary?  I took this route because it was the

7 safest, or I took this route because it was the most direct

8 route, or I took this route because there was less lights,

9 that's discretionary.

10 MR. GANZ:  So when does it stop then?  When does it

11 stop?

12 THE COURT:  I don't know.  It's your -- it's -- 

13 MR. GANZ:  I shot this guy because I thought he

14 didn't look good, but that was my discretion.

15 THE COURT:  Well -- 

16 MR. GANZ:  You know, I ran through this 

17 intersection -- 

18 THE COURT:  Okay.

19 MR. GANZ:  -- without my lights on because I didn't

20 want, you know, the -- the neighbors to be woken up.

21 THE COURT:  Okay.  How is it -- 

22 MR. GANZ:  I mean, at what point in time is it -- 

23 THE COURT:  -- is there in this -- but we're talking

24 factually.

25 MR. GANZ:  Yes.

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC � 303-798-0890
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1 THE COURT:  It's subject to the facts.  So in this

2 particular case what defense had indicated is that he entered

3 the intersection slightly in order to see and then proceeded

4 and that's when the accident occurred.  Is that correct?  Am I

5 understanding the facts right?

6 MR. GANZ:  No, he -- 

7 MR. CRAFT:  It was -- well -- I don't think he can

8 speak to this.  I think it was -- 

9 MR. GANZ:  He's pointing at you, so.

10 MR. CRAFT:  -- I think it was unfortunate timing. 

11 We pulled in off -- about 1 or 2 feet -- 

12 THE COURT:  Uh-huh. 

13 MR. CRAFT:  -- to -- because that's -- he had to

14 pull up that far to see -- 

15 THE COURT:  To see.

16 MR. CRAFT:  -- at all.

17 THE COURT:  Okay.

18 MR. CRAFT:  That's when she hit her brakes.  It's

19 just unfortunate timing, just -- 

20 MR. GANZ:  Yeah.

21 THE COURT:  So he was already out in the

22 intersection and then she come -- 

23 MR. CRAFT:  He pulled out to see, she hit her

24 brakes, slid into him.

25 MR. GANZ:  No, that's not exactly -- exactly what he

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC � 303-798-0890
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1 testified to.  What he testified to, which I don't -- I don't

2 know what a jury is going to believe about that.

3 THE COURT:  Um-hum. 

4 MR. GANZ:  He testified he stopped a few feet

5 beforehand, looked, inched forward, inched forward, inched

6 forward, inched forward, and supposedly was in the

7 intersection when he decided to go forward.  That's what he

8 claims.

9 THE COURT:  Okay.

10 MR. GANZ:  And I don't -- 

11 THE COURT:  And his lights are on?

12 MR. GANZ:  -- think the jury's going to buy that. 

13 That's what he claims, lights and siren.  That's what he

14 claims.

15 THE COURT:  And she said she saw lights at that

16 point?

17 MR. GANZ:  She said she saw it just immediately

18 right before she hit him.  

19 THE COURT:  Okay.

20 MR. GANZ:  And we don't know specifically which

21 lights we're talking about here either.

22 THE COURT:  Um-hum. 

23 MR. GANZ:  And she clearly says there is no siren

24 on.  Clearly says there's no siren on.

25 THE COURT:  Okay.
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1 MR. GANZ:  So the reality -- 

2 THE COURT:  But the lights were on and she's

3 entering -- 

4 MR. GANZ:  Well, you're -- you're picking and

5 choosing parts of the -- the statute then to apply to, because

6 if it says that that particular statute, then that means he's

7 satisfying the statute.  

8 The very next sentence in the statute says, he must

9 not -- he must -- "this section does not relieve the driver

10 from duty to drive with due regard for the safety of others on

11 the roads."

12 So how do you reconcile the two?

13 THE COURT:  So your argument is, is that you have to

14 have lights and siren in order to be -- 

15 MR. GANZ:  No.  My -- my argument is, she's on a

16 green light -- 

17 THE COURT:  Um-hum. 

18 MR. GANZ:  -- traveling through an intersection.

19 THE COURT:  Um-hum. 

20 MR. GANZ:  How does this wreck occur?  He runs a red

21 light and is not being safe about that.  That's not

22 discretionary.

23 THE COURT:  Okay.  Where was the damage to the

24 vehicles?

25 MR. GANZ:  Whose vehicles, his?
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1 THE COURT:  Well, his vehicle?

2 MR. GANZ:  Right to the front of hers and to the

3 left quarter panel of his.

4 THE COURT:  Okay.  So he eased out?

5 MR. GANZ:  Actually, more like his into her.  If I

6 remember correctly, it was actually the front quarter panel of

7 his into the front kind of -- it was almost at a "T", almost

8 at a point -- 

9 THE COURT:  Okay.

10 MR. GANZ:  -- where like her right front and his

11 left front if I remember correctly.

12 THE COURT:  Did it appear that -- 

13 MR. GANZ:  And you can correct me if I'm wrong.

14 THE COURT:  Did it appear that the -- that the squad

15 car struck the other car or the other car struck the squad

16 car?

17 MR. CRAFT:  We're going to go ahead and say that's a

18 factual dispute.

19 THE COURT:  Okay.

20 MR. CRAFT:  We have competing experts.

21 THE COURT:  Okay.

22 MR. CRAFT:  It's -- it basically is -- 

23 THE COURT:  Then that right there, I think, is -- in

24 my opinion, and right now that's what's mattering, is that's

25 the dispute.  
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1 If, in fact, the squad car is out in the

2 intersection and gets hit by the other vehicle with the lights

3 going then, you know, I think that you're probably on better

4 grounds.  

5 But if the squad car strikes that vehicle, then

6 there's a good argument that the plaintiff in this matter

7 didn't observe it and couldn't have heard it, or didn't hear,

8 because he said the sirens weren't on.  

9 MR. CRAFT:  Judge, I believe -- 

10 THE COURT:  So that's -- 

11 MR. CRAFT:  -- that's contrary to the cases that

12 we've cited from around the country.  We gave you six cases to

13 where -- in far more egregious situations than this.  

14 THE COURT:  I know, but under the circumstances,

15 under what the factual scenario that I put forth, if that's

16 what comes out, if the squad car -- if the person's -- the

17 plaintiff in this matter is already in the intersection and

18 the squad car comes through and T-Bones them, by your same

19 argument, the squad car is protected.

20 MR. CRAFT:  That's not -- well, he is protected. 

21 But that's not -- that's not what she testified to.

22 THE COURT:  Okay.  

23 MR. CRAFT:  He had pulled into the intersection. 

24 She saw him a hundred -- 

25 THE COURT:  Yeah, well, can you tell me, did she
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1 strike his vehicle or did he strike her vehicle?

2 MR. CRAFT:  He was already in the intersection when

3 she saw him.  That's why she slammed on her brakes and slid

4 120 feet toward his vehicle.  So it's impossible for -- to say

5 that he was somehow blowing through this intersection the way

6 they say over and over in their -- 

7 THE COURT:  Okay.  You have -- 

8 MR. CRAFT:  -- in their opposition.

9 THE COURT:  -- you actually have skid marks and all

10 that -- 

11 MR. CRAFT:  Yes.

12 THE COURT:  -- that she went 120 feet before she

13 strikes his vehicle?

14 MR. CRAFT:  Yes, we do.  So she saw him, she saw his

15 lights.  And we're talking about, you know, due care here.

16 THE COURT:  Um-hum. 

17 MR. CRAFT:  And I believe as we've cited in our

18 case, in our motion, it's his discretion to decide what is due

19 care even.  All these cases that they're citing don't have

20 anything to do with discretionary immunity.  They're citing 

21 to -- 

22 THE COURT:  Well, isn't that the factual position

23 that the plaintiff and the defense would always be inapposite

24 with, what is actually due care?  So you're saying it just --

25 it's the officer's unfettered discretion to decide whether or
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1 not it's due care.  If he wants to 200 miles an hour down a

2 residential street and he thinks that's due care, under your

3 scenario, the plaintiff would never have a claim.

4 MR. CRAFT:  I don't think so.  I think that's taking

5 it very much to extremes.  First of all, cars can't go 200

6 miles an hour.

7 THE COURT:  Well, I did that, because that was the

8 argument you just made, is that it's in the officer's

9 discretion to determine what due care is.  So, I put it to

10 that extreme to see whether or not -- what your position would

11 be.

12 MR. CRAFT:  Well, the only standard that we have

13 under Nevada law is asleep at the wheel.  That's what they

14 talk about in Martinez v. Maruszczak where someone's making --

15 just being unconscious at the wheel.  And I haven't seen any

16 cases where someone is asleep at the wheel, thank God.

17 THE COURT:  All right.

18 MR. CRAFT:  But we do have cases where we are

19 liable.  We do.  And I -- 

20 THE COURT:  Yeah, but the term "unconscious" is also

21 a -- also a possible -- it's used unilaterally with actually

22 being asleep or not paying attention.

23 MR. CRAFT:  Um-hum. 

24 THE COURT:  So that's the factual dispute.  The

25 plaintiff is claiming that this officer wasn't exercising
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1 proper due care.

2 MR. CRAFT:  Well, he just -- you have a

3 demonstration of what -- their version of events where he's

4 inching forward looking and to a point where he can actually

5 see where there's a vehicle coming.

6 THE COURT:  Yeah.

7 MR. GANZ:  That wasn't my version.  That was the

8 officer's version.  I think it's BS, but, you know, we'll see

9 if the jury believes him or not.

10 THE COURT:  Yeah, but that -- and your client

11 though, in her testimony indicated that she actually saw the

12 lights and then -- so that's what -- she had to have.  That's

13 what caused her to hit her brakes a hundred and -- 

14 MR. GANZ:  Yeah, I mean -- 

15 THE COURT:  -- sixty feet.

16 MR. GANZ:  -- I certainly don't believe that little

17 description because if -- certainly, if he was looking at --

18 and you've got a car coming down a road there and he's inching

19 forward, and inching forward, and he's in the middle of it, he

20 doesn't need to pull forward.  I mean, clearly, I mean, it

21 doesn't make any sense and I don't think the jury's going to

22 buy it, so.

23 MR. CRAFT:  I don't think they're -- 

24 THE COURT:  Well, your client wouldn't have to abide

25 by the officer's -- 

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC � 303-798-0890

0691



21

1 MR. GANZ:  Well, no, he said he was -- 

2 THE COURT:  -- entrance (indecipherable)?

3 MR. GANZ:  -- only a few feet above.  So if this is

4 the front of the intersection he's only up to here.  It's not

5 like he's three -- she's the -- in the third lane.

6 THE COURT:  Well, what's -- what is -- 

7 MR. GANZ:  She's in the third lane.

8 THE COURT:  -- what does the accident diagram

9 support?

10 MR. CRAFT:  Well, I mean, they've paid somebody to

11 say it supports their purview and we have someone and our

12 officer.

13 THE COURT:  Well, what's that?  I'm sorry, I'm

14 sorry.  I didn't -- they paid somebody to say?

15 MR. CRAFT:  To say that our officer was somehow

16 blowing through this intersection.  And it's just -- it's --

17 THE COURT:  I know, but doesn't the accident report

18 show where the actual collision took place?

19 MR. CRAFT:  Yes.

20 MR. GANZ:  So -- 

21 THE COURT:  And where is that in regards to the

22 intersection?  What lane -- 

23 MR. CRAFT:  It supports our -- 

24 THE COURT:  -- what lane was -- 

25 MR. CRAFT:  It supports our theory.

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC � 303-798-0890

0692



22

1 THE COURT:  -- she in versus -- 

2 MR. CRAFT:  We had pulled into her lane by about a

3 foot.  She hit her brakes and slid into our car.

4 THE COURT:  I know, what lane was she in?

5 MR. CRAFT:  In the closest driving lane.

6 MR. GANZ:  No.

7 THE COURT:  To what, closest driving lane to the

8 curb or closest driving lane to the center?

9 MR. GANZ:  No, no.

10 MR. CRAFT:  I -- 

11 MR. GANZ:  She was -- she was not -- it was not the

12 first lane, Judge.

13 THE COURT:  Well, address me.

14 MR. GANZ:  It was not the first lane, Judge.  That's

15 my recollection of it.  

16 THE COURT:  Okay.

17 MR. GANZ:  I don't have it -- 

18 THE COURT:  The first lane would be the -- 

19 MR. GANZ:  -- in front of me.

20 THE COURT:  -- right lane and my opinion -- and my

21 understanding, the second lane is probably the middle lane and

22 then the -- I'm familiar with that -- with that area.  And

23 then there's another lane, and then there's a turning lane.

24 MR. CRAFT:  Right.

25 THE COURT:  So what lane was she in?
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1 MR. CRAFT:  The farthest driving lane to the south. 

2 So the first one that he had to enter into to be able -- 

3 THE COURT:  Okay.

4 MR. CRAFT:  -- to see if there was a vehicle there.

5 THE COURT:  All right.

6 MR. CRAFT:  And, you know, if we're going to have

7 competing events, look, you're getting right to the point. 

8 They cannot dispute these skid marks.  And she saw the

9 vehicle, she saw his emergency lights, hit her brakes and slid

10 forward.  And whether he was moving one mile an hour at that

11 point or whether he was stopped doesn't really matter.

12 THE COURT:  Okay.  And how far out into the

13 intersection was she -- was he, I mean?

14 MR. CRAFT:  About a foot.

15 THE COURT:  And then the front -- the front of her

16 vehicle struck his left front -- 

17 MR. CRAFT:  Yes.

18 THE COURT:  -- quarter panel?  Did she strike it

19 behind the wheel or in front of the wheel?

20 MR. CRAFT:  In front of the wheel.

21 THE COURT:  Towards the bumper?

22 MR. CRAFT:  Yes.  

23 MR. GANZ:  Judge, I'm not convinced that's accurate,

24 but I'm looking for -- I'm looking for the diagram.  My memory

25 was that she was in either the middle or the left lane.
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1 THE COURT:  Okay.

2 MR. GANZ:  And, I mean, that's -- 

3 THE COURT:  You mean -- 

4 MR. CRAFT:  Oh, wow.

5 THE COURT:  -- to the center?

6 MR. GANZ:  I could be wrong.  I'm just going -- 

7 THE COURT:  All right.

8 MR. GANZ:  -- from my memory of taking these

9 depositions and it's been a while so.

10 THE COURT:  This is what I'm going to do.  Before I

11 make my mind up on this, I want those issues answered.

12 MR. GANZ:  Okay. 

13 THE COURT:  Okay?  As to the location, what the

14 diagram shows, and if you can provide me with a diagram I'll

15 even look at it that route -- way and then I'll see if that

16 assists me in making my decision, okay?

17 MR. GANZ:  Judge, just for clarification purposes,

18 too, they threw in like one paragraph in the Reply that says

19 that the City shouldn't be liable either.

20 THE COURT:  Um-hum. 

21 MR. GANZ:  We have claims for negligent supervision,

22 negligent hiring, none of that stuff was even addressed

23 remotely in this -- 

24 THE COURT:  Well -- 

25 MR. GANZ:  -- in these motions at all, and I don't
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1 presume that you're just going to bootstrap the -- 

2 THE COURT:  The immunity argument?

3 MR. GANZ:  -- yeah, to -- to saying the City's out

4 completely.

5 THE COURT:  Well, if the -- if the driver is immune,

6 how does it reach then further to the City?

7 MR. CRAFT:  Exactly, Judge.

8 MR. GANZ:  But he's not immune -- they're not immune

9 from negligent supervision, negligent hiring.

10 THE COURT:  I know, but you'd have to assume then

11 that any immunity that applies to the driver wouldn't apply at

12 all to the North Las Vegas police -- I mean, the North Las

13 Vegas because you're saying that they negligent hired,

14 negligent -- 

15 MR. GANZ:  No.  No, that's not what I'm -- 

16 THE COURT:  I -- 

17 MR. GANZ:  What I'm saying is, on the particular --

18 if you find that he is -- if you find that he is immune then

19 maybe a vicarious liability cannot attach, I agree.  However,

20 you can't say that our direct claims against the City for

21 negligent hiring, supervision and policies that they have,

22 those -- 

23 THE COURT:  Yeah, but don't you have to establish a

24 cause of action with regards to the driver in order to reach

25 the City?

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC � 303-798-0890

0696



26

1 MR. GANZ:  My client was injured because they have a

2 bad policy -- let's just assume that this guy was a felon and

3 they hired him anyway, right?  

4 MR. CRAFT:  Oh, good God, Judge.

5 MR. GANZ:  I mean, of course that's not -- 

6 THE COURT:  Okay.

7 MR. GANZ:  -- that's not -- that's not the -- 

8 THE COURT:  Well, I'll hear that out.

9 MR. GANZ:  -- the case.  Let's just assume that he

10 was, right?

11 THE COURT:  Okay.

12 MR. GANZ:  And my client was injured because this --

13 this -- they shouldn't have had him on the Force.  

14 THE COURT:  Okay.

15 MR. GANZ:  How does that have anything to do with

16 this specific act that he might be immune for?

17 MR. CRAFT:  Judge -- 

18 THE COURT:  Because the immunity would carry over.

19 MR. CRAFT:  All right.  I think we need to better

20 fetter that out for you, Judge.

21 THE COURT:  I'll tell you what; I'll give you an

22 opportunity to brief that further.

23 MR. CRAFT:  Okay.

24 THE COURT:  But I'm -- 

25 MR. CRAFT:  Judge -- 
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1 THE COURT:  You're going to be hard pressed to get

2 around that argument.

3 MR. GANZ:  Okay.

4 MR. CRAFT:  I can save you a step.  

5 THE COURT:  Okay.

6 MR. CRAFT:  What he's saying is like negligent

7 hiring, negligent retention, negligent supervision is a whole

8 separate thing.  

9 THE COURT:  Uh-huh.

10 MR. CRAFT:  The reason he's started saying this now

11 is because they forgot to address that in their opposition. 

12 We brought it up in our motion on page 11, "As explained in

13 Bryan supra, the decisions related to the hiring, training and

14 supervision of employees usually involve policy and judgments

15 which are protected by discretionary immunity."  We cited that

16 case.  We've address their claims.  They forgot to mention

17 that in their opposition.

18 THE COURT:  Well, I'll -- 

19 MR. CRAFT:  They've had a chance to brief it, they

20 shouldn't have one now.

21 THE COURT:  No, I'll let them.  I'll let them.  I

22 understand -- you're okay.  Just -- don't get too mad.  You

23 know what, let's hear it out, you know what I mean?  And  

24 then -- 

25 MR. CRAFT:  No problem.
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1 THE COURT:  -- but I'll tell you though, you've got

2 a tough position with that argument with me.

3 MR. GANZ:  Okay.

4 THE COURT:  Because I know the case that you're

5 talking about and -- but I'll give you -- I mean, maybe I'm

6 interpreting it wrong, I don't know, I'll give you a chance to

7 straighten me out on that if you think you can.

8 But I'm going to continue this over.  And how long

9 do you want?  I just need -- I want information with respect

10 to the diagram and the location of the -- 

11 MR. CRAFT:  You want a description of the accident

12 as far as -- 

13 THE COURT:  Uh-huh. 

14 MR. CRAFT:  -- what the evidence shows -- 

15 THE COURT:  Right.

16 MR. CRAFT:  -- and the police report and -- 

17 THE COURT:  Um-hum. 

18 MR. CRAFT:  -- okay.  

19 THE COURT:  And I'll -- and both of you can brief it

20 that way, you know, I think that that -- 

21 MR. GANZ:  Do you want to set it for a couple weeks

22 and maybe give us a week to do the briefs?

23 THE COURT:  I can set it out -- 

24 MR. GANZ:  Okay, longer.  I don't care.

25 THE COURT:  -- I'll set it out -- 
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1 MR. GANZ:  Less?

2 THE COURT:  -- 30 days.  Will that be enough?

3 MR. CRAFT:  Thirty days.  And if we could have our

4 briefs in -- and I'm sorry, I'm just crushed right now and I

5 know you are too.

6 MR. GANZ:  That's fine, I've got two trials next

7 door that I'm waiting -- 

8 THE COURT:  Well, you don't need more time?

9 MR. CRAFT:  Three weeks?

10 THE COURT:  Do you need more time?

11 MR. CRAFT:  If I could have 30 days to go ahead and

12 brief this -- 

13 THE COURT:  Okay.

14 MR. CRAFT:  -- and get everything in front of you.

15 THE COURT:  I'll give you three weeks to -- well,

16 you want 30 days to brief it and then a week after that for --

17 or -- 

18 MR. CRAFT:  I'll need three weeks to brief it.

19 THE COURT:  Okay.  Will that be okay with you?

20 MR. GANZ:  We'll get it done, Judge.

21 THE COURT:  All right.  So, 30 days to -- 30 days

22 for the argument, and three weeks then you'll get the briefs

23 done.  And -- 

24 THE CLERK:  Okay.  The briefs will be due by

25 February 23rd -- are they doing blind briefs?
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1 THE COURT:  Yeah, you can -- I don't need you to do

2 oppositions or whatever, that.  But if you want to address

3 further the issue involving -- 

4 MR. GANZ:  Okay.

5 THE COURT:  -- the immunity of the -- 

6 MR. GANZ:  We'll do.

7 THE COURT:  -- North Las Vegas, I'll look at that.

8 MR. GANZ:  Okay.

9 THE COURT:  And I want you to serve a copy of that

10 portion of your brief, at least, on opposing counsel and see

11 if they want to readdress that.

12 MR. GANZ:  Oh, so we're not serving these briefs on

13 each other?

14 THE COURT:  You can.  I wasn't going to require -- 

15 MR. GANZ:  Just serve them simultaneously, right?

16 MR. CRAFT:  Everything's electronically served, so.

17 MR. GANZ:  Just -- just simultaneously -- 

18 THE COURT:  Yeah.  Okay.  And that's fine.

19 MR. GANZ:  -- right?

20 MR. CRAFT:  Yeah, let's do it at the same time.

21 THE CLERK:  And the hearing -- the continuation date

22 will be March 1st at 9:00 a.m.

23 MR. CRAFT:  Thank you.

24 MR. GANZ:  Thank you, Your Honor.

25 THE COURT:  Okay.  Yeah, my law clerk asked that
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1 maybe you could submit a courtesy copy to us on that?

2 MR. CRAFT:  We will.

3 MR. GANZ:  Of course.

4 THE COURT:  Okay.  Thank you.  All right.

5 MR. GANZ:  Thank you, Judge.

6 THE COURT:  Okay.  

7 (Proceeding concluded at 9:29 A.M.)

8 *   *   *   *   *
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1 LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, TUESDAY, MARCH 1, 2016, 9:29 A.M.

2 THE COURT:  On page -- page 8 -- no, I’m sorry, page

3 5, this is Japonica Glover v. John Cargile, it’s A-683211. 

4 This is on for the Defendants’ Motion for Summary Judgment.

5 Okay, for the record, can you state your names?

6 MR. CRAFT:  Good morning, Judge.  Chris Craft here

7 for the defendants, City of North Las Vegas and John Cargile.

8 THE COURT:  Okay.

9 MS. HAUF:  Good morning, Your Honor.  Marjorie Hauf

10 on behalf of the plaintiff, Japonica Glover-Armont.

11 THE COURT:  Okay.  I asked to have you supplement

12 your previous motion for reasons to get around questions that

13 I had factually.  And I don’t believe what’s been presented to

14 me has satisfied my concerns factually.  So for those reasons,

15 I’m going to deny your motion without prejudice.  I do believe

16 there are still genuine issues of material fact here.

17 The simple fact is the arguments between one’s

18 perception versus another’s perception as to what they saw

19 with respect to the lights and siren or what they saw with

20 respect to somebody coming down the street and the officer

21 proceeds.

22 I understand the testimony.  The officer felt that

23 he had -- he could go, and other cars had stopped.  I

24 understand the testimony that the -- one believed the police

25 officers lights and sirens were not on, the officer believed
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1 that his lights were on, but he changed his tone when he

2 entered the street.  But that’s a specific fact, I think, that

3 goes to this particular issue.

4 So -- I mean, if, in fact, the argument is that I

5 believe that the officer entered with a -- made his own

6 decision to enter and then that simply, by itself, grants him

7 immunity, I believe there would be no -- no reason whatsoever

8 to even ever file any motion because it would always be the

9 officer saying, that’s what I did.

10 So because that -- because the officer’s statement

11 is due to -- I mean, is subject to credibility and

12 believability, I believe that that’s a factual issue that the

13 jury has to make a determination of.

14 MR. CRAFT:  But, Judge, a determination is was he

15 making a decision?  Was he asleep at the wheel?  That’s how

16 far it has to go in their direction.

17 THE COURT:  Well, I don’t know that because --

18 because if, in fact, there is a belief that he didn’t have his

19 lights on, or sirens on at all and he was passing through,

20 that may be something that the jury might decide that he was

21 asleep at the wheel, because when you enter an intersection,

22 that’s what you would always do.  That’s -- that’s the -- that

23 alone is the factual issue that I think the jury needs to make

24 a decision on.

25 MR. CRAFT:  Judge, I don’t think it’s a material
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1 issue.  The things they raise in their supplement are

2 immaterial to this entire case.  What they’re talking about is

3 did she have her headlights on or not.  We concede that.  We

4 don’t even care.  We didn’t bring that up.  

5 THE COURT:  Well, I’m not -- I’m not -- that kind of

6 goes to a point whether or not the officer saw.  I mean, and

7 it may be -- it may be a position that the jury looks at and

8 says, you know what, she entered it, she didn’t have her

9 lights on.  The officers -- there's no way he can see it.  And

10 so when he entered, he entered appropriately believing that --

11 that he did it with lights and siren.  They may believe that

12 that’s a requirement, you know, for him to enter in a safe

13 manner.

14 So I do believe it’s an issue of material fact.  I

15 disagree with you.  I believe that that’s an issue that the

16 jury has to decide on.

17 MR. CRAFT:  I take it that --

18 THE COURT:  I can’t decide on it here.

19 MR. CRAFT:  I appreciate that, Judge, but there’s a

20 difference between this kind of case and a case that I have

21 seen, not literally asleep at the wheel, but where it’s just

22 simple screwing up on the job.  

23 THE COURT:  Um-hum. 

24 MR. CRAFT:  I’ve seen cases where officers are like

25 -- the hand mike will drop on the floor, he reached down to
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1 get it, looks up, there’s a car in front of me, hits it.  We

2 don’t have the discretion to begin that kind of case.

3 This sort of philosophy they have to where they are

4 saying, well, this would mean there’s never a negligent

5 officer; that’s not the case.  We have fender-benders.  We

6 have accidents where our guys are not responding to an

7 emergency and they’re not making a conscious decision for this

8 whole public policy.

9 THE COURT:  Yeah, but hear me out on this.  If in

10 fact -- and I don’t have any doubt that the officer was

11 responding to an emergency, I don’t.  But that doesn’t absolve

12 him of certain responsibilities short of, in this simple case,

13 would be to notify individuals around him that he’s responding

14 to an emergency and the way they do it is with the light or

15 siren.

16 If he -- if he was not the officer who dropped the

17 mike, but as an officer who says, you know what, I was

18 responding to an emergency.  I’m in such a hurry, and he

19 doesn’t do anything with regards to notifying the public that

20 he is involved in an emergency situation, and no one knows to

21 stop and they run into him like they did, do you think that

22 just because he’s responding to an emergency, it is absolves

23 him of any responsibility further than that?

24 MR. CRAFT:  Because he’s responding to an emergency

25 and because he’s making a conscious decision on how to do his
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1 job.  Judge, these kinds of --

2 THE COURT:  Yeah, the -- yeah, but the conscious

3 decision is the issue that I think is the jury question.  Is

4 this a conscious decision here?  Did he -- did he do it in a

5 manner that was safe for the public? 

6 MR. CRAFT:  I'd say --

7 THE COURT:  And that’s the whole issue here.

8 MR. CRAFT:  He has the discretion to decide what is

9 safe.  She saw his lights, Judge.

10 THE COURT:  So if he blows through an intersection

11 without -- just if I -- if I just accept -- I’ll -- I mean,

12 hear me on this one.  If I just change the facts and there’s

13 no dispute on it, he blew through an intersection, not

14 notifying anybody, you know, and he went through a red light

15 himself, when green to the opposite and he didn’t notify

16 anybody.  It’s just -- the only thing is he has a squad car,

17 but he didn’t have his lights on, he didn’t have his siren on

18 to notify anybody of that, and they drove normally and they

19 get in a wreck.  Under your scenario, he’s absolved, he’s in 

20 -- has immunity because he made a conscious decision.

21 MR. CRAFT:  The difference is that what he was

22 doing, admittedly, by the plaintiff, in compliance with NRS,

23 NRS 44B.700.  Like --

24 THE COURT:  What’s the -- what do you mean, the

25 difference?
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1 MR. CRAFT:  The difference is you’re saying he went

2 through -- blowing through without lights or sirens, without

3 notifying anybody.

4 THE COURT:  That’s what I’m saying, that’s what I’m

5 saying is that’s the dispute.  Is it --

6 MR. CRAFT:  No, it’s not, Judge, because --

7 THE COURT:  I thought the officer is saying in

8 deposition, I had my lights and siren on.  The plaintiff, in

9 deposition, saying, I didn’t hear any lights or sirens.

10 MR. CRAFT:  Well, you’re not going to hear lights

11 (inaudible).

12 THE COURT:  I didn’t hear any sirens and I didn’t

13 see any lights.

14 MR. CRAFT:  No.  She said she saw the lights.  And

15 NRS 44B.700 gives him the option, lights or lights and sirens. 

16 There’s no dispute that he was in compliance with Nevada law. 

17 That’s the difference.

18 THE COURT:  Is that correct?

19 MS. HAUF:  I don’t believe that is correct, Your

20 Honor.  I think if that was correct, it probably would have

21 been set out in the briefing that way with the quote from the

22 client that apparently said that.  It’s been a while since

23 I’ve read her deposition --

24 THE COURT:  Do you have -- do you have the

25 transcript?
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1 MS. HAUF:  -- so I don’t want to misrepresent it. 

2 But, Your Honor, there’s -- there’s more to it than that. 

3 What we’re talking about here is a Motion for Summary Judgment

4 and in the Motion for Summary Judgment --

5 THE COURT:  Go ahead, I’m listening.

6 MS. HAUF:  -- there is -- whenever there is disputed

7 facts, you have to look at the disputed facts in the light

8 most favorable to the non-moving party.  

9 So I think you’re exactly on point with whether or

10 not this officer was complying with the law, whether or not he

11 was -- he was going through the red light with his lights and

12 sirens on, you have to look at that in the light most

13 favorable to the non-moving party.  That is, that he came

14 around a blind corner without sirens and -- and without lights

15 in a way that was visible to her. 

16 There’s also another issue that we’re leaving out

17 here, which is, whether or not she was in the intersection

18 first.  This is a huge disputed fact because regardless of

19 whether he has lights or sirens on, if she’s in that

20 intersection first and he runs into her, it doesn’t matter if

21 he has lights or sirens --

22 THE COURT:  Well, that’s what I --

23 MS. HAUF:  -- because she’s already there.

24 THE COURT:  That’s what I was asking last time we

25 were here, and the representation that I had that was made to
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1 me was that the front left quarter panel of the officer was

2 struck by your client’s vehicle.

3 MR. CRAFT:  And what she’s saying doesn’t make any

4 sense, Judge.  Is she saying that, like, that we slammed into

5 her in the intersection?  Then why did she slam on her brakes

6 and skid 110 feet to hit him?  Obviously -- it’s not even

7 disputed that he pulled into the intersection to see around

8 the corner.

9 THE COURT:  No, I’m okay with that.

10 MR. CRAFT:  Okay. 

11 THE COURT:  Okay.  Can you point to the transcript?

12 MR. CRAFT:  I’m working on it, Judge.

13 THE COURT:  Okay.  Because I --

14 MR. CRAFT:  The exact line, I don’t know if I have

15 it.

16 THE COURT:  -- I -- I don’t recall where there was

17 any statement where she said she saw his lights.

18 MR. CRAFT:  Judge, why don’t we trail this out of

19 respect for everyone else here?

20 THE COURT:  Okay.  

21 MS. HAUF:  And, Your Honor, again I would -- I don’t

22 have time, obviously, even if we’re trailing it, I don’t have

23 the transcript with me to read the entire transcript and see

24 what is or isn’t taken out of context there.  

25 The reality is we’re here on a Motion for Summary
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1 Judgment, this is the defendant’s motion.  It’s their job to

2 be prepared for their motion.  If they’re telling -- don’t you

3 think that if that was the issue, which you specifically sent

4 us back to brief, that if there was language in that

5 deposition that said, I saw the lights, I heard the sirens,

6 that that would have been in their brief?

7 MR. CRAFT:  Judge --

8 MS. HAUF:  That’s not our --

9 THE COURT:  Well, good.  Well, I’m going to give you

10 a chance to look at it.

11 MR. CRAFT:  Thank you, Judge.

12 THE COURT:  Okay.

13 (Case passed from 9:38 a.m. until 9:56 a.m.)

14  THE COURT:  Japonica Glover versus John Cargile. 

15 It's A-683211.

16 MR. CRAFT:  I believe where we left off, the

17 question was whether or not she actually saw the emergency

18 lights on Cargile’s vehicle prior to entering the

19 intersection.

20 THE COURT:  What page?

21 MR. CRAFT:  Going to Ms. Gover-Armont’s deposition. 

22 It was taken August 7, 2014, page 22, starting about line 9.

23 Question, “Did you state to the officer that was

24 making this report that you saw vehicle number two, the police

25 car's emergency lights activated as you approached the
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1 intersection?”

2 Answer, “I saw him as I entered the intersection.”

3 Question, “Okay.  And you saw his emergency lights

4 activated?”

5 Answer, “Yes.”

6 It’s undisputed, Judge.  It’s not him blowing

7 through an intersection.  She saw his lights, he was in

8 compliance with NRS.

9 MS. HAUF:  Your Honor, may I speak?

10 THE COURT:  Yes, go ahead.

11 MS. HAUF:  This is exactly what I was concerned

12 about, unfortunately.  My office was able to e-mail me the

13 exact sections of the deposition that create the question of

14 fact that we are here talking about.  There is a -- first, you

15 had said that you were comfortable with the fact that she was

16 in the intersection first.  And let me read you --

17 MR. CRAFT:  He --

18 THE COURT:  No, I didn’t.  That -- that was --

19 MS. HAUF:  -- or that he was -- the officer that --

20 THE COURT:  Right.  Well, that was the question I

21 had last week -- I mean, last time you were here.  I wanted to

22 know if you could -- if there was any additional information

23 you could provide the Court with that regard.  And --

24 MS. HAUF:  Well, here -- here’s what it says in her

25 deposition.
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1 “Looking forward to your answers to interrogatories

2 number two,” which are, of course, sworn statements under

3 oath, “please describe in detail the incident that is the

4 subject of this lawsuit, basically, a summary of your side of

5 the story.  And your answer to interrogatory number two on

6 page 3, the last sentence you say, ‘The officer did not have

7 his sirens on and plaintiff could not see his lights flashing

8 due to the hill obstructing her view.’  As you sit here today,

9 is that an accurate statement?”

10 Answer, “Yes.”

11 Question, “Explain how the hill obstructed your view

12 of the officer’s flashing lights?”

13 “The hill was huge.  There was no -- there was no

14 vision, period, to the right as you’re approaching the hill. 

15 The hill starts.  I don’t know how many feet back from the

16 light, but it starts and it inclines.  So it goes to a peak

17 and there’s no vision of anything to the right of you.  You

18 can’t even, if you wanted to, like people do a right-hand turn

19 on the light, you would have to completely stop, ease up and

20 look around the hill, so it totally obstructs anything to the

21 right of you.  And that’s what -- to the right of me was

22 coming from the intersection.”

23 So first of all there's a question of fact -- 

24 THE COURT:  Yeah.

25 MS. HAUF:  -- whether or not it was safe, it was
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1 safe, because if there’s not discretionary immunity for

2 unsafely entering an intersection, period.  There’s not

3 discretionary immunity for doing this unsafely.

4 Now, true, the statute says you can enter with

5 sirens or you can enter with sirens and lights, or you can

6 enter were sirens and lights as required by law.  The statute

7 goes on to say, “The plain language is unambiguous.  The

8 provision of this section do not relieve the driver from the

9 duty to drive with due regard for safety of all persons and do

10 not protect the driver from consequences of the driver’s

11 reckless disregard for the safety of others.”

12 THE COURT:  So your argument basically is under

13 certain circumstances, there may be something further that a

14 jury may take in a factual issue as to whether or not it was 

15 -- he entered safely.

16 MS. HAUF:  And whether or not he had safely or --

17 THE COURT:  And this one was because of the dirt

18 mound?

19 MS. HAUF:  -- or was reckless.  Even with regards to

20 who was in the intersection first, she says in her deposition,

21 “I was already in the intersection when I saw him.”

22 THE COURT:  Well, wasn’t there a significant amount

23 of skid marks on her behalf when the officer got --

24 MR. CRAFT:  110 feet, Judge.

25 THE COURT:  -- that -- 110 feet, and it was starting
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1 before the intersection, right?

2 MR. CRAFT:  Yes, Judge.

3 THE COURT:  And see, so I --

4 MS. HAUF:  But, Your Honor, we -- and yeah.  And

5 that’s a question of fact for the jury whether or not that is

6 reasonable.

7 THE COURT:  Right.

8 MS. HAUF:  We have to have somebody come in and

9 explain what perception and reaction of time is.

10 THE COURT:  I know.  But what she's -- what she's

11 saying --

12 MS. HAUF:  Certainly, my client’s perception --

13 THE COURT:  I know.  But what she’s saying is, I was

14 in the intersection when I saw -- the first time I saw him. 

15 Well, the skid marks themselves dispute that.

16 MS. HAUF:  Well, that was 110 feet of pre-impact

17 skid marks.

18 THE COURT:  Well, and it was --

19 MS. HAUF:  What’s missing in this -- in this fact

20 and what’s for the jury to decide is where that impact

21 occurred.

22 MR. CRAFT:  Well -- 

23 THE COURT:  No, I think it’s where the start at the

24 skid marks start because that’s where she’s reacting.

25 MS. HAUF:  Correct.
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1 THE COURT:  And the skid marks were prior to the

2 intersection.

3 MS. HAUF:  But if the -- but, Your Honor, if the

4 skid marks start three feet prior to the intersection --

5 THE COURT:  Okay. 

6 MS. HAUF:  -- then that’s not --

7 THE COURT:  Do they? 

8 MS. HAUF:  -- but that’s not him -- I don’t know. 

9 We don’t know the answer to that.

10 THE COURT:  Well, I thought you did.  I thought that

11 was -- that was one of the things I sent you off for.

12 MR. CRAFT:  That’s why we went to the accident

13 report, Judge, and everything is in there.  The diagram that

14 the plaintiff’s produced show that he was all of 6.5 feet into

15 the intersection.

16 THE COURT:  Okay. 

17 MR. CRAFT:  That’s about this far plus a pen.

18 MS. HAUF:  That’s how far the officer was into the

19 intersection, not how far the plaintiff was.

20 MR. CRAFT:  She can’t dispute that she skid 110 feet

21 before impacting his vehicle.

22 MS. HAUF:  Regardless of that, Your Honor, I mean

23 there’s not even a reason to have to get there.  It is a

24 disputed issue of fact.  It is a disputed issue of fact.

25 MR. CRAFT:  Well --
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1 THE COURT:  I agree, I agree.  Mr. Craft, I’m not

2 going to take any further argument and this is why.

3 The position -- this is that section down there

4 right behind the golf course, right?  Where the big -- the big

5 hill is?

6 MR. CRAFT:  Yes, Judge.

7 THE COURT:  Yeah.  And the officer was coming from

8 the right going to his left.  And -- I’m sorry, coming from

9 the south going north.

10 MR. CRAFT:  Yes.

11 THE COURT:  And so he would have been coming from

12 behind the mound.  And the plaintiff was traveling east; is

13 that correct?

14 MR. CRAFT:  Yes.

15 THE COURT:  And so the mound would have been in the

16 way.  I think that’s an issue.  I think you’re going to have

17 to overcome that and I don’t think you have.  That’s a factual

18 issue that I think the jury can make the determination, based

19 on the circumstances, what it is that the -- that gave the

20 officer a reason to believe that he was entering safely, what

21 it is that obstructs the -- if there is an obstruction, the

22 length of the skid marks, when -- when the defendant -- I

23 mean, when the plaintiff saw the car.  I think those are all

24 factual scenarios that --

25 MR. CRAFT:  I appreciate that, Judge, but can I make
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1 my record?

2 THE COURT:  Yes, yes.

3 MR. CRAFT:  Okay.  We addressed this in our motion

4 initially on page 8, it’s Vassallo ex rel Brown v. Majeski,

5 it’s a Minnesota case, talking about an identical statute

6 about the requirements of an emergency vehicle going through a

7 red light.  Their statute requires a vehicle to slow down as

8 necessary for safety and they discuss the discretionary

9 immunity in that case.

10 “The requirement of a driver of an authorized

11 emergency vehicle shall slow down as necessary for safety,

12 plainly does not impose an absolute duty on the driver of an

13 emergency vehicle to slow down in every situation upon

14 approaching a red or stop signal or a stop sign.  Rather, the

15 requirements conditioned on the driver's,” in this case, that

16 would be the Majeski’s, “determination of the level of speed

17 appropriate for safety under the circumstances.  This is a

18 textbook example of exercise of discretion.  The policy and

19 the statute requires individual and professional judgment that

20 necessarily reflects the professional goal and factors of a

21 situation and is therefore discretionary.”

22 He has to decide what constitutes due care in this

23 situation.  It renders discretionary immunity obsolete if we

24 say in every case it’s --

25 THE COURT:  Mr. Craft, though, I don’t mean to
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1 interrupt you, but -- but that’s the very issue, is that if

2 he’s deciding and then the jury says, you know what, officer,

3 we heard what you said, but we don’t agree with it because we

4 don’t think you decided appropriately.  Isn’t that the issue?

5 MR. CRAFT:  It’s not, Judge.

6 THE COURT:  So you’re saying legally I have to make

7 the determination whether or not this officer entering the

8 intersection did it properly with his discretion?

9 MR. CRAFT:  No, because we don’t get to that

10 question.

11 THE COURT:  Okay. 

12 MR. CRAFT:  Immunity decides first.  Discretionary

13 immunity, it’s hinged on whether he made a conscious decision

14 on what he was going to do in the furtherance of a public

15 policy.

16 THE COURT:  Okay. 

17 MR. CRAFT:  These cases, like Seiffert v. City of 

18 Reno --

19 THE COURT:  So you’re -- so I understand the law as

20 you’re citing it.  So what you’re saying is that the officer

21 makes a conscious decision based on public policy to respond

22 to a call -- 

23 MR. CRAFT:  Um-hum.

24 THE COURT:  -- and to enter this intersection in the

25 manner in what he did?
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1 MR. CRAFT:  Correct.

2 THE COURT:  Okay.  That alone, he gets immunity;

3 that's what you’re saying?

4 MR. CRAFT:  We don’t even get to the middle of this

5 question, Judge.  Look at Seiffert v. City of Reno.  Again, a

6 public decision, we know what the rule is there.  But what

7 they talk about is the tape that was taping off a crime scene,

8 they say, look, the officers decided to put this tape up the

9 way they did.  I mean, it's a public policy of fighting crime,

10 preserving a crime scene.  They never discussed whether it was

11 negligent or not, whether or not they met the care.  You don’t

12 get to that question.  The immunity is there.

13 But, Judge, they’re saying he was asleep at the

14 wheel?  That’s their argument.  That’s what they put forth in

15 their motion with regards to what they’re saying here today

16 and that makes no sense under the facts of this case.

17 THE COURT:  You know what?  I am -- I don’t read the

18 law that narrow.  I -- that’s awful strict in the way you’re

19 reading that.  I don’t read it that way.  And, I’m sorry, and

20 maybe I’m wrong.  And, obviously, your perception is that I

21 am.  But I’m going to make the decision now and give you an

22 opportunity, you know, back up and do what you have to do. 

23 But my decision here is I’m going to deny your motion.

24 You know, I might be reading that wrong.  And if I 

25 -- until I get further direction, that’s the way I’m

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC � 303-798-0890

0879



20

1 interpreting it, is that I do not believe that it goes to the

2 point where -- where if an officer makes a conscious decision

3 based on that he’s responding to an emergency call, simply

4 that is what you’re saying, then he’s granted immunity.  And

5 it’s unqualified immunity as in the way you’re interpreting it

6 to the point where I don’t even get to the point where a jury

7 makes the determination whether or not his discretion to enter

8 the intersection in the manner he did was proper or not.

9 MR. CRAFT:  Then I don’t understand what the purpose

10 of immunity is.  The purpose of immunity is to allow our

11 officers to do their jobs without having fear of civil

12 repercussions against them personally.  

13 THE COURT:  Um-hum. 

14 MR. CRAFT:  They have to be able to respond to

15 emergencies, making split-second decisions every day without

16 somebody looking over their shoulder --

17 THE COURT:  Well, I understand that.  But you’re

18 saying that there’s -- it’s unfettered, meaning, to the point

19 where it’s just his discretionary call.  And if he does

20 nothing when there’s policies that are out there for purposes

21 of safety, and if he does nothing to support that and that’s

22 what they’re --

23 MR. CRAFT:  Well, I don’t know where you’re getting

24 there’s nothing to support that because it’s undisputed that

25 he had his emergency lights on.  She saw them when he’s going
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1 through the light.

2 THE COURT:  Well, no, no, no, no.  I think that the

3 way that the interrogatory comes out, it talks about the fact

4 that the mountain’s in the way and she’s not sure.

5 MR. CRAFT:  Oh, Judge -- 

6 THE COURT:  But then at the point -- at the point

7 she’s hitting the car, I’m sure she probably saw the lights.

8 MR. CRAFT:  Well, Judge, she can’t create an issue

9 of fact by just -- by contradicting herself.

10 THE COURT:  Well, I don’t think there is --

11 MR. CRAFT:  I don’t know what I’m supposed to do

12 except to ask her in a deposition --

13 THE COURT:  I don't -- I mean, Mr. Craft, I don’t

14 think there is a contradiction there.  I don’t think --

15 reading what you -- what you said to me -- I mean, what you

16 pointed out in her language is that -- what did she say?  Page

17 24, is that it?

18 MR. CRAFT:  Twenty-two.

19 THE COURT:  Twenty-two.  Wrong one.  Okay.

20 “I saw him as I entered the intersection.”

21 “And you saw emergency lights on?”

22 “Yes.”

23 As she entered, right as she entered, she saw him. 

24 So at what point in time was it she saw him?

25 MR. CRAFT:  I’m assuming it’s when she hit her
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1 brakes 110 -- or more than 110 feet out.

2 THE COURT:  Okay.  I know, but that’s -- that’s what

3 I’m saying.  At what -- if they’re just now coming to the

4 intersection, and that’s when she sees it, just as she’s

5 entering, and she doesn’t have a chance to stop, and she

6 didn’t see the lights because the mountain’s in the way down

7 the road further, then what -- I mean, you --

8 MR. CRAFT:  I’m unclear, Judge.  It’s undisputed

9 that he pulled 6.5 feet into the intersection, into her lane. 

10 That’s why she hit her brakes.

11 THE COURT:  What’s that?

12 MR. CRAFT:  That’s why she hit her brakes, she saw

13 his vehicle 110 feet out.

14 THE COURT:  What --

15 MR. CRAFT:  They don’t dispute that.

16 THE COURT:  What section -- what lane was she in

17 again?

18 MR. CRAFT:  The far right lane.

19 THE COURT:  Okay.  So she was -- like the turn lane?

20 MR. CRAFT:  Yes.  I don’t know if there is a turn

21 lane.

22 THE COURT:  Turn lane to the right, right?

23 MR. CRAFT:  Going to the right.

24 THE COURT:  Yeah.  So she’s closest to the curb.

25 MR. CRAFT:  Yes.
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1 THE COURT:  Yeah.  So then there -- that even has a

2 little bit more -- a little bit more obstruction because she’s

3 even closer to that mountain.

4 So, Mr. Craft, I’m sorry, I’m denying your motion. 

5 You know, hopefully the record’s clear enough.  If you want to

6 appeal it, then, you know; okay?

7 MR. CRAFT:  Yes, Judge.

8 (Proceeding concluded at 10:08 A.M.)

9 *   *   *   *   *
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